AMERICAN ENTERPRISE INVESTMENT SERVICES, INC. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

(unaudited)

June 30, 2023

Contents

Statement of Financial Condition	1
Notes to Statement of Financial Condition	2

American Enterprise Investment Services, Inc. Statement of Financial Condition (unaudited) June 30, 2023

(In thousands, except share data)

Assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	118,660
Cash and cash equivalents segregated under federal and other regulations		1,207,841
Securities segregated under federal and other regulations		358,425
Receivables:		
Customers		1,239,759
Brokers, dealers and clearing organizations		17,611
Affiliates		33,042
Other (net of allowance of \$376)		121,183
Securities borrowed		76,379
Goodwill		41,831
Securities owned, at fair value		42,440
Securities owned - fractional shares, at fair value		225,142
Deposits with clearing organizations		29,621
Accrued interest and dividends receivable		1,317
Other assets		10,402
Total assets	\$	3,523,653
Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity		
Liabilities:		
Payables:		
Customers	\$	2,628,867
Brokers, dealers and clearing organizations		56,116
Affiliates		61,270
Other		39,542
Securities loaned		104,576
Accrued expenses		15,441
Securities sold, not yet purchased, at fair value		14,836
Securities sold, fractional shares, at fair value		225,142
Unearned revenues		27,002
Accrued interest and dividends payable		764
Total liabilities		3,173,556
Liabilites subordinated to the claims of general creditors	\$	60,000
Commitments and contigencies (see note 15)	φ	00,000
Stockholder's equity:		
Common stock, \$1 par value:		
Authorized, issued and outstanding shares - 100	\$	-
Additional paid-in capital		195,700
Retained earnings		94,397
Total stockholder's equity		290,097
Total liabilities and stockholder's equity	\$	3,523,653
To an anomalo and stockholder's equity	Ψ	5,525,055

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

American Enterprise Investment Services, Inc. (the Company) is incorporated under the laws of the State of Minnesota. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AMPF Holding Corp. AMPF Holding Corp. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ameriprise Financial, Inc. (the Parent). The Company executes and clears trades for accounts introduced by Ameriprise Financial Services, LLC (AFS), an affiliated company. The Company also performs services on behalf of mutual fund companies, including affiliates, related to the management of customer books and records. The Company is a dealer in corporate and municipal bonds, U.S. Government and Agency securities and certificates of deposit. The Company is a clearing broker dealer registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the various states in which the Company conducts business and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (FINRA), the National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations system (NASDAQ) and the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC).

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of financial statement preparation

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. These estimates reflect the best judgment of management and actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents can include commercial paper, money market funds, time deposits and other highly liquid investments with original or remaining maturities at the time of purchase of 90 days or less. The Company has evaluated the cash equivalents for credit risk and has determined it is negligible due to the short term nature of the investment.

Receivable from/Payable to customers

Receivables from customers primarily consist of margin loans to brokerage clients and are carried at the estimated net realizable value. The Company is indemnified by AFS for losses incurred by the Company in connection with clients introduced by AFS. Payables to customers primarily consist of cash held in brokerage accounts and are carried at the amount of cash on deposit. The Company has not historically experienced any material credit losses in connection with receivables from customers.

Securities borrowed and loaned

Securities borrowed and loaned result from transactions with other brokers and dealers or financial institutions. These are accounted for as collateralized financing transactions and are recorded at the amount of cash collateral advanced or received. Securities borrowed transactions require the Company to deposit cash or other collateral with the lender. As of June 30, 2023, the Company advanced \$76,379 of cash collateral with security lenders and received securities with a market value of \$74,387 related to those transactions. Securities loaned transactions require the borrower to deposit cash or other collateral with the Company. As of June 30, 2023, the Company received \$104,576 of cash collateral from security borrowers and loaned securities with a market value of \$101,615 related to those transactions. The Company monitors the market value of securities borrowed and loaned on a daily basis, with additional collateral obtained or refunded as necessary. Interest is accrued on securities borrowed and loaned and the related amounts are included in accrued interest and dividends receivable or payable in the statement of financial condition.

Deposits with clearing organizations

Deposits with clearing organizations consist of cash collateral deposited with clearing organizations to allow the Company to clear trades. These are included in deposits with clearing organizations in the statement of financial condition.

Securities transactions

Proprietary securities transactions (securities owned and securities sold, not yet purchased) in regular-way trades are recorded on the trade date, with the pre-settlement balance reflected as part of receivable from/payable to brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations in the statement of financial condition. Customer securities transactions are recorded on a settlement date basis. Securities owned and securities sold, not yet purchased are carried at fair value on a trade date basis. Securities owned by customers, excluding fractional shares, but including those that collateralize margin or other similar transactions, are not reflected on the statement of financial condition.

Fractional Shares

Customer accounts occasionally hold fractional shares as a result of Dividend Reinvestment Plans (DRIP) and corporate activity such as stock splits. When a customer's DRIP or other activity results in the Customer receiving a share quantity that is not a whole number, the Company will transact whole shares on an agency basis and the fraction of a share on a principal basis. The Company records a liability (Securities sold, not yet purchased – fractional shares, at fair value) on the statement of financial condition for amounts related to customer fractional shares (determined on a customer by customer basis for each equity security held). The Company typically purchases and holds whole shares of the respective securities in amounts that approximate the fractional share liability and has reflected these as Securities owned – fractional shares, at fair value on the statement of financial condition. The fair value of the fractional share assets and liabilities is determined by quoted prices in active markets.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the amount of an acquired company's acquisition cost in excess of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment annually on the measurement date of July 1 and whenever events and circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred. In determining whether impairment has occurred, the Company uses the discounted cash flow method.

Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses primarily represent amounts due to employees for compensation-related items. These expenses are recognized when incurred.

Income taxes

The Company's provision for income taxes represents the net amount of income taxes that the Company expects to pay or to receive from various taxing jurisdictions in connection with its operations. The Company provides for income taxes based on amounts that the Company believes it will ultimately owe taking into account the recognition and measurement for uncertain tax positions. Inherent in the provision for income taxes are estimates and judgments regarding the tax treatment of certain items. The Company's taxable income is included in the consolidated federal and state income tax returns of the Parent. The Company provides for income taxes on a separate return basis, except that, under an agreement between the Parent and the Company, tax benefits are recognized for losses to the extent they can be used in the consolidated return. It is the policy of the Parent to reimburse its subsidiaries for any tax benefits recorded.

In connection with the provision for income taxes, the financial statements reflect certain amounts related to deferred tax assets and liabilities, which result from temporary differences between the assets and liabilities measured for financial statement purposes versus the assets and liabilities measured for tax return purposes.

Allowance for credit losses

Allowance for credit losses is a valuation account that is deducted from the amortized cost basis of the financial assets to present the net amount expected to be collected over the asset's expected life, considering past events, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions. Estimates of expected credit losses consider both historical charge-off and recovery experience as well as current economic conditions and management's expectation of future charge-off and recovery. Expected losses related to risks other than credit risk are excluded from the allowance for credit losses.

The Company monitors the market value of collateral supporting the margin loans and stock borrows and requests additional collateral when necessary in order to mitigate the risk of loss. Due to these ongoing monitoring procedures, under the practical expedient, the allowance for credit losses is only measured for the margin loan balances and stock borrow balances that are undercollateralized at the statement of financial condition date. The uncollateralized amount was immaterial as of June 30, 2023.

2. Cash, cash equivalents and securities segregated under federal and other regulations

The Company is required to segregate cash and qualified securities in a special reserve account for the exclusive benefit of customers under SEC Rule 15c3-3 (Customer Protection Rule). The Company also performs the computation for assets in the proprietary accounts of brokers (PAB) in accordance with the customer reserve computation set forth in the Customer Protection Rule and segregates cash in a special reserve account for the benefit of the PAB.

As of June 30, 2023, cash and securities segregated under federal and other regulations consisted of the following:

Cash and cash equivalents segregated under federal and other regulations for benefit of:	
Customers	\$ 1,206,887
PAB	 954
Total cash and cash equivalents segregated under federal and other regulations	1,207,841
Securities segregated under federal and other regulations for customers	 358,425
Total cash, cash equivalents and securities segregated under federal and other regulations	\$ 1,566,266

3. Cash sweeps

The Company offers clients three options as an automatic investment or sweep of excess cash in their brokerage accounts. Clients can choose from an FDIC insured (to maximum available) interest bearing product, a Dreyfus money market fund or Ameriprise Cash.

The FDIC insured product is either Ameriprise Insured Money Market Account (AIMMA), a multibank program or Ameriprise Bank Insured Sweep Account (ABISA), a single bank model. AIMMA is a multi-bank program with 23 non-affiliated banks and one affiliated bank, Ameriprise Bank, FSB, participating in the program. As of June 30, 2023, \$27,121,266 was invested in the FDIC insured programs, of which Ameriprise Bank, FSB held \$20,873,268.

The Dreyfus money market option consist of two money market funds, the Dreyfus General Government Securities Money Market Fund and the Dreyfus Government Cash Fund. As of June 30, 2023, there was \$165,065 invested in the Dreyfus funds.

The amount of excess cash swept into AIMMA and Dreyfus Funds products is not reported in the statement of financial condition and is not included in the computation for determination of reserve requirement pursuant to rule 15c3-3 as client dollars in AIMMA are the obligations of the respective institutions and the Dreyfus Funds is an investment option that represents customer owned securities.

Ameriprise cash is an interest bearing product and is covered by the SIPC. Clients' assets are subject to coverage thresholds of a maximum of \$500 per client, including a \$250 limit on claims for cash held in Ameriprise client accounts. As of June 30, 2023, there was \$2,554,613 of clients' free credit balances invested in this product. This amount is held on deposit with the Company and is included as payable to customers in the statement of financial condition and is included in the computation for determination of reserve requirement pursuant to rule 15c3-3.

4. Customer receivables and payables

Customer receivables include amounts due on margin and cash transactions. Customer receivables are primarily collateralized by securities with market values in excess of the amounts due. At June 30, 2023, less than 1% of receivables from customers are unsecured per the FINRA definition. In accordance with the intercompany clearing agreement, the introducing broker dealer, AFS, has agreed to indemnify the Company and therefore the Company has not established an allowance for any potential losses based upon an evaluation of customer accounts. In addition, appropriate deductions are made in the Company's net capital computation, as AFS is an affiliated company. It is the policy of the Company to monitor the market value of the collateral and to request additional collateral when necessary. Such collateral is not reflected on the accompanying statement of financial condition.

Customer payables represent free credit balances, funds deposited by customers and funds accruing to customers as a result of settled trades.

The components of receivables from and payables to customers as of June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Receivables:	
Margin loans	\$ 1,117,812
Other customer receivables	121,947
Total receivables	\$ 1,239,759
Payables:	
Free credit balance	\$ 2,554,613
Other customer payables	74,254
Total payables	\$ 2,628,867

The Company has a payable to customers related to fractional share amounts arising from DRIP and other transactions. At June 30, 2023 the fractional share liability was \$225,142 and was reflected in Securities sold, fractional shares, at fair value on the statement of financial condition.

5. Receivables from and payables to brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations

Broker receivables and payables arise primarily from securities transactions executed by the Company for customers and non-customers introduced by AFS. Broker receivables are generally collected within 30 days and are collateralized by securities in physical possession or control, on deposit, or receivable from customers or other brokers.

Broker payables represent amounts related to the unsettled purchase of securities. The value of such securities at June 30, 2023 approximates the amounts owed.

The components of receivables from and payables to brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations as of June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Receivables:	
Securities failed to deliver	\$ 8,784
Funds due from clearing organizations and financial institutions, net	 8,827
Total receivables	\$ 17,611
Payables:	
Securities failed to receive	\$ 21,204
Funds due to clearing organizations and financial institutions, net	34,912
Total payables	\$ 56,116

The Company has the ability to hypothecate and rehypothecate customer securities. In addition, the Company monitors the market value of collateral held. It is the policy of the Company to request and receive additional collateral when required.

6. Other receivables

Other receivables include \$48,914 for third party marketing support, \$29,338 for networking and sub-accounting fees, \$24,852 for distribution fees from cash sweep products, \$9,280 for customer account maintenance fee and \$8,799 for other miscellaneous receivables.

7. Securities owned and securities sold, not yet purchased

As of June 30, 2023, securities owned by the Company and securities sold, not yet purchased by the Company were \$267,582 and \$239,979, respectively. Of the securities owned by the Company, \$225,142 is securities owned - fractional shares, at fair value and \$6,863 is held at the Option Clearing Corporation (OCC) as part of required clearing deposit. Securities sold, not yet purchased represent obligations of the Company to deliver the specified security at the contracted price and, thereby, create a liability to purchase the security in the market at prevailing prices. The securities sold, fractional shares, at fair value represent \$225,142 of the total. Accordingly, these transactions result in off-balance sheet risk, as the Company's ultimate obligation to satisfy the sale of securities sold, not yet purchased may exceed the amount reflected in the statement of financial condition. The remaining holdings are primarily debt securities including corporate, government and agencies, and municipal debts.

8. Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized but is instead subject to impairment tests. For the six months ended June 30, 2023, the Company did not record any goodwill impairment.

9. Fair values of assets and liabilities

U.S. GAAP defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date; that is, an exit price. The exit price assumes the asset or liability is not exchanged subject to a forced liquidation or distressed sale.

Valuation Hierarchy

The Company categorizes its fair value measurements according to a three-level hierarchy. The hierarchy prioritizes the inputs used by the Company's valuation techniques. A level is assigned to each fair value measurement based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows:

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 – Prices or valuation based on observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 3 – Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable.

Determination of Fair Value

The Company uses valuation techniques consistent with the market and income approaches to measure the fair value of its assets and liabilities. The Company's market approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities. The Company's income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future projected cash flows to a single discounted present value amount. When applying either approach, the Company maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs.

The following is a description of the valuation techniques used to measure fair value and the general classification of these instruments pursuant to the fair value hierarchy.

Assets

Segregated securities and cash equivalent segregated securities under federal and other regulations

When available, the fair value of securities is based on quoted prices in active markets. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are obtained from nationally-recognized pricing services, or other model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of cash flows. Segregated securities with original or remaining maturities at the time of purchase of 90 days or less are considered cash equivalents. All segregated securities are treasury notes, and are classified as Level 1 as the fair values of the securities are obtained from nationally-recognized pricing services.

Customer receivables

Customer receivables are measured at outstanding balances, which are a reasonable estimate of fair value because of the sufficiency of the collateral and short term nature of these receivables. Margin loans that are sufficiently collateralized are classified as Level 2. This balance is not included in the following table.

Securities borrowed

Securities borrowed require the Company to deposit cash or collateral with the lender. As the market value of the securities borrowed is monitored daily and the transactions are short term, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value. The fair value of securities borrowed is classified as Level 1 as the value of the underlying securities is based on unadjusted prices for identical assets. This balance is not included in the following table.

Securities owned

When available, the fair value of securities owned and securities owned – fractional shares is based on quoted prices in active markets. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are obtained from nationally-recognized pricing services, or other model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of cash flows. Level 1 securities primarily include U.S. treasury notes, equity securities, exchange trade funds (ETFs) and mutual funds traded in active markets. Level 2 securities primarily include state and municipal obligations, corporate bonds, government and U.S. agency. Level 2 other securities primarily consist of limit market securities. The fair value of these Level 2 securities is based on a market approach with prices obtained from third party pricing services. Observable inputs used to value these securities can include, but are not limited to, reported trades, benchmark yields, issuer spreads and non-binding broker quotes.

Liabilities

Customer payables

Customer deposits are liabilities with no defined maturities and fair value is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of these deposits is classified as Level 1. This balance is not included in the following table.

Securities loaned

Securities loaned require the borrower to deposit cash or collateral with the Company. As the market value of the securities loaned is monitored daily and the transactions are short term, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value. Securities loaned are classified as Level 1 as the fair value of the underlying securities is based on unadjusted prices for identical assets. This balance is not included in the following table.

Securities sold, not yet purchased

When available, the fair value of securities sold, not yet purchased and securities sold, not yet purchased – fractional shares is based on quoted prices in active markets. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are obtained from nationally-recognized pricing services, or other model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of cash flows. Level 1 securities primarily include U.S treasury notes, and equity securities traded in active markets. Level 2 securities primarily include corporate bonds and municipal bonds. Level 2 other securities include primarily limited market securities.

The following table presents the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

	Level 1 Level 2		Level 2 Level 3 Tot	
Assets				
Segregated investments	\$ 661,605	\$ —	\$ —	\$ 661,605
Government and agency obligation	6,863	262	_	7,125
Corporate bonds	_	6,971	_	6,971
Municipal bonds	_	21,991	_	21,991
Equities	6,137	_	_	6,137
Other securities	_	216	_	216
Securities owned - fractional shares, at fair value	225,142			225,142
Total assets at fair value	\$ 899,747	\$ 29,440	<u> </u>	\$ 929,187
Liabilities				
Securities sold, not yet purchased				
Corporate bonds	\$ —	\$ 3,926	\$ —	\$ 3,926
Government and agency obligation	7,501	_	_	7,501
Municipal bonds	´—	5	_	5
Equities	2,946		_	2,946
Other securities	_	459	_	459
Securities sold, not yet purchased - fractional shares, at fair value	225,142			225,142
Total liabilities at fair value	\$ 235,589	\$ 4,390	<u> </u>	\$ 239,979

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments are recorded by the Company at fair value or at contract amounts, which approximate fair value and include receivables from and payables to brokers, dealers and clearing organizations; deposits with clearing organizations; and amounts receivable from and payable to affiliates. These financial instruments have short-term maturities (one year or less), are repriced frequently or bear market interest rates and, accordingly, are carried at amounts which are a reasonable estimate of fair value.

10. Financing activities and off-balance sheet risk

The Company's customer activities involve the execution, settlement and financing of various securities transactions. These activities are transacted on either a cash or margin basis. In margin transactions, the Company extends credit to the customer, subject to various regulatory and internal margin requirements, collateralized by cash and securities in the customer's account. Such transactions may expose the Company to off-balance sheet risk in the event that margin requirements are not sufficient to cover losses that customers incur, or contra brokers are unable to meet the terms of the contracted obligations.

In the event a customer or broker fails to satisfy its obligations, the Company may be required to purchase or sell financial instruments at prevailing market prices in order to fulfill the customer's obligations. The Company seeks to control the risk associated with its customer activities by requiring customers to maintain collateral in compliance with various regulatory and internal guidelines. The Company monitors required margin levels daily and, pursuant to such guidelines, require customers to deposit additional collateral, or reduce positions, when necessary.

In August 2019, the Company has entered into agreements for uncommitted lines of credit with three third party banks, having a combined limit of \$500,000. There were no draws on the lines of credit during the period ending June 30, 2023. The Company also maintains related party financing agreements with the Parent as described in Note 11.

The Company enters into securities borrowing transactions that may result in credit exposure in the event the counterparty to the transaction is unable to fulfill its contractual obligations. The Company minimizes credit risk

associated with these activities by monitoring counterparty credit exposure and collateral values on a daily basis and requires that additional collateral be deposited with or returned by the Company when deemed necessary.

In the normal course of business, the Company obtains securities under securities borrowed and custody agreements on terms which permit it to pledge the securities to others. At June 30, 2023, the Company obtained securities with a fair value of approximately \$1,457,261 on such terms, for which \$448,376 have been either pledged or otherwise transferred to others in connection with the Company's financing activities. Of the securities pledged, the market value of securities pledged at the OCC was \$346,761.

11. Related-party transactions

The Company maintains two revolving lines of credit with the Parent aggregating up to \$750,000 to fund short term operational needs: \$300,000 committed and \$450,000 with lender discretion. These agreements remain in effect until the commitment is terminated upon written notice by either party. For the six months ended June 30, 2023, the Company utilized the line of credit 21 days and during this period had an average overnight borrowing of \$62,333. There was no outstanding balance on the line of credit at June 30, 2023.

The Company has a short-term intercompany lease agreement with an affiliate, Ameriprise Holdings, Inc. (AHI). The agreement has a one-year term with no contractual renewal provision and is cancelable by either party with 30 days notice. No lease asset or liability is recorded on the statement of financial condition due to practical expedient. Under the agreement, the Company compensates AHI for use of property, equipment and similar items that AHI owns and maintains.

Receivables due from affiliates on the statement of financial condition as of December 31, 2022, primarily include \$19,137 clearing fees and other related receivables from AFS, Federal income tax of \$5,261 from the Parent, \$3,951 networking sub-accounting fees from Columbia Management Investment Services.

Payables due to affiliates on the statement of financial condition as of June 30, 2023, primarily include \$25,064 related to administrative and service costs and \$15,387 State income taxes payable to the Parent. There was also \$20,388 trading concessions payable to AFS.

The Company participates in the Parent's Retirement Plan (the Plan), which covers all permanent employees age 21 and over who have met certain employment requirements. Effective April 2020, the Parent no longer enrolled new employees in the Plan. Contributions to the Plan are based on participants' age, years of service and total compensation for the year. Funding of retirement costs for the Plan complies with the applicable minimum funding requirements specified by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA).

The Company also participates in defined contribution pension plans of the Parent that cover all employees who have met certain employment requirements. The Company's contributions to the plans are a percentage of either each employee's eligible compensation or basic contributions.

The Company also participates in the Parent's Incentive Compensation Plan. Under the Incentive Compensation Plan, employees are eligible to receive incentive awards including stock options, restricted stock awards, non-qualified options, restricted stock units, performance shares and similar awards designed to comply with the applicable federal regulations and laws of jurisdiction. The Company pays various employee benefit plan expenses to the Parent including expenses associated with RSAs, RSUs, stock options and deferred compensation plans, based on the value of the awards issued to the Company's employees.

In the normal course of the business, the Company provides distribution services to entities which may have a direct financial interest in the Parent. Fees earned include networking and subaccounting fees. These amounts have been reflected within the corresponding financial statement line item.

For the period ending June 30, 2023, the Company paid dividends to the Parent of \$360,000.

In the normal course of business, the Company's or its affiliates' executive officers and directors may have brokerage accounts or other financial products offered by the Company or its affiliates.

12. Subordinated Liabilities

The Company entered in a subordinated loan agreement with the Parent on January 25, 2017. Under this agreement the Parent lent the Company \$60,000 with an initial term of 5 years to be repaid no later than January 22, 2022. The Company has the option to renew the current agreement in one-year increments in perpetuity. Effective June 1, 2023, the Company and Lender agreed to amend the subordinated agreement by modifying the interest rate from LIBOR plus 90 basis points to Daily Simple SOFR plus 100 basis points (SOFR + 1.00%) per annum. The subordinated loan agreement entered with the Parent was approved by FINRA prior to the respective effective date. The loan agreement has been approved by FINRA to be added as allowable liabilities in computing net capital under the SEC's SEA Rule 15c3-1(d). Pursuant to the agreement, the Parent must notify the Company on or before the day thirteen months preceding the maturity if they do not intend to extend the maturity date of the agreement. The loan agreement was automatically renewed for one year in January 2022 and 2023, extending the maturity date to January 22, 2023 and 2024, respectively.

13. Net capital provisions

As a registered broker dealer, the Company is subject to the SEC's uniform net capital rule (Rule 15c3-1).

The Company computes its net capital requirements under the alternative method provided for in Rule 15c3-1, which requires the Company to maintain net capital equal to 2% of combined aggregate customer-related debit items, as defined or \$250, if greater.

At June 30, 2023, the Company's net capital was \$177,396 or 12% of aggregate debit balances, and \$148,416 in excess of required net capital. Advances to affiliates, dividend payments and other equity withdrawals are subject to certain notification and other provisions of the net capital rule of the SEC and other regulatory bodies.

14. Income taxes

The Company had a receivable to the Parent for current federal income taxes of \$5,458 and a payable to the Parent for state income taxes of \$15,351 at June 30, 2023.

The effective tax rate of 24.55% for the six months ended June 30, 2023 is higher than the statutory rate of 21% primarily as a result of state income taxes.

The Company is required to establish a valuation allowance for any portion of the deferred income tax assets that management believes will not be realized. In the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefit of the deferred income tax assets, and therefore, no such valuation allowance has been established.

The Company files income tax returns, as part of its inclusion in the consolidated federal income tax return of Ameriprise Financial (the Parent), in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. The federal statute of limitations are closed on years through 2015. A previously open item for 2014 and 2015 was resolved in the second quarter of 2023. Also in the second quarter of 2023, the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") audit for tax years 2016 through 2018 was finalized. The IRS is currently auditing the Parent's U.S. income tax returns for 2019 and 2020. The Parent's or its subsidiaries', including the Company's, state income tax returns are currently under examination by various jurisdictions for years ranging from 2017 through 2020.

As of June 30, 2023, the Company had \$9,472 of gross unrecognized tax benefits. If recognized, approximately \$7,483 net of federal tax benefits of unrecognized tax benefits as of June 30, 2023 would affect the effective tax rate.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the income tax provision. The Company has recognized a \$251 increase of interest and penalties for the six months ended as of June 30, 2023. The Company had \$1,420 for the payment of interest and penalties accrued at June 30, 2023.

It is reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will change in the next 12 months. The Company estimates \$1,826 of gross unrecognized tax benefits may decrease in the next 12 months primarily due to expected exam closures and state statutes of limitations expirations.

15. Commitments, contingencies and other legal and regulatory matters

In the normal course of its business, the Company indemnifies and guarantees certain service providers, such as clearing and custody agents, against specified potential losses in connection with their acting as an agent of, or providing services to, the Company. The Company also indemnifies some clients against potential losses incurred in the event specified third-party service providers, including sub-custodians and third-party brokers, improperly executed transactions. The maximum potential amount of future payments that the Company could be required to make under these indemnifications cannot be estimated. However, the Company believes that it is unlikely it will have to make material payments under these arrangements and has not recorded any contingent liability in the financial statements for these indemnifications.

The Company provides representations and warranties to counterparties in connection with a variety of commercial transactions and may indemnify them against potential losses caused by the breach of those representations and warranties. The Company may also provide standard indemnifications to some counterparties to protect them in the event additional taxes are owed or payments are withheld, due either to a change in or adverse application of certain tax laws. These indemnifications generally are standard contractual terms and are entered into in the normal course of business. The maximum potential amount of future payments that the Company could be required to make under these indemnifications cannot be estimated, however, the Company believes that it is unlikely.

The Company may be involved, in the normal course of business, in legal, regulatory and arbitration proceedings concerning matters arising in connection with the conduct of its operations. These include proceedings specific to the Company, as well as proceedings generally applicable to business practices in the industries in which it operates. Uncertain economic conditions, volatility in the financial markets, and significant recently enacted financial reform legislation may increase the likelihood that clients and other persons or regulators may present or threaten legal claims or that regulators increase the scope or frequency of examinations of the Company or the financial services industry generally.

As with other financial services firms, the level of regulatory activity and inquiry concerning the Company's businesses remains elevated. From time to time, the Company receives requests for information from, and/or has been subject to examination or claims by, the SEC, the FINRA, and other governmental and quasi-governmental authorities concerning the Company's business activities and practices. These legal and regulatory inquiries, proceedings and potential disputes are subject to uncertainties and, as such, the Company is unable to predict the ultimate resolution or range of loss that may result. In accordance with applicable accounting standards, the Company establishes an accrued liability for contingent litigation and regulatory matters when those matters present loss contingencies that are both probable and can be reasonably estimated. In such cases, there still may be an exposure to loss in excess of any amounts reasonably estimated and accrued. When a loss contingency is not both probable and estimable, the Company does not establish an accrued liability, but continues to monitor, in conjunction with any outside counsel handling a matter, further developments that would make such loss contingency both probable and reasonably estimable. Once the Company establishes an accrued liability with respect to a loss contingency, the Company continues to monitor the matter for further developments that could affect the amount of the accrued liability that has been previously established, and any appropriate adjustments are made each quarter.

16. Offsetting assets and liabilities

Certain financial instruments and derivative instruments are eligible for offset in the statement of financial condition under U.S. GAAP. The Company's securities borrowing and lending agreements are subject to master netting arrangements and collateral arrangements and meet the U.S. GAAP guidance to qualify for offset. A master netting arrangement with counterparty creates a right of offset for amounts due to and from that same counterparty that is enforceable in the event of a default or bankruptcy. Securities borrowed and loaned result from transactions between the Company and other financial institutions and are recorded at the amount of cash collateral advanced or received.

All securities borrow and loan transactions have an open contractual term and, upon notice by either party, may be terminated with in three business days. As of June 30, 2023, all securities loan open contracts are equity securities.

The Company's policy is to recognize amounts subject to master netting arrangements on a gross basis on the statement of financial condition.

The Company's assets subject to master netting arrangements as of June 30, 2023, are as follows:

			Gr	oss	Aı	mounts of		Gross an	ount	not		
		amount			a	issets	C	offset in the statement of				
		Gross	offs	ets in	pres	presented in financial condition			tion			
	aı	mounts	the sta	itement	the s	the statement						
	of re	ecognized	of fir	ancial	of financial			inancial	S	ecurity	1	Net
	assets		con	condition		condition		uments (1)	cc	ollateral	am	ount
Securities borrowed	\$	76,379			\$	76,379	\$	(28,905)	\$	(46,573)	\$	901
Total	\$	76,379	\$		\$	76,379	\$	(28,905)	\$	(46,573)	\$	901

Represents the amount of assets that could be offset by liabilities with the same counterparty under master netting arrangements that management elects not to offset on the statement of financial condition.

The Company's liabilities subject to master netting arrangements as of June 30, 2023, are as follows:

			Amounts				
		Gross	of	Gross am	Gross amount not		
		amount	assets	offset in the	statement of		
	Gross	offsets in	presented in	financial	financial condition		
	amounts	the statement	the statement				
	of recognized	of financial	of financial	Financial	Security	Net	
	assets	condition	condition	instruments (1)	collateral	amount	
Securities loaned	\$ 104,576		\$ 104,576	\$ (28,905)	\$ (73,801)	\$ 1,870	
Total	\$ 104,576	\$	\$ 104,576	\$ (28,905)	\$ (73,801)	\$ 1,870	

Represents the amount of liabilities that could be offset by assets with the same counterparty under master netting arrangements that management elects not to offset on the statement of financial condition.

17. Subsequent events

As of August 14, 2023, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, the Company has evaluated events or transactions that may have occurred after the financial condition date for potential recognition or disclosure.